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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The John Martin House is a two=-story stone ruin situated on the crest of a ridge
overlooking Sauratown Mountain Range. The south elevation, which faces- the mountain,
is presumably the main facade, for the porch is centered on this facade, and it is
logical that the house would face this breathtaking vista. The ruin is the remains of
the late eighteenth century residence of John Martinj it has been a ruin since the late
nineteenth century. Martin's grave is located at the bottom of the hill below the house.
The strikingly picturesque structure will be stabilized and will serve as the chief
attraction of a four-acre nature park which is being developed here.

The turee-bay widas, rectangular structure is cunstructed eniirely of 1rrauuldr—
shaped fieldston=z, with the exception of the front porch, and has a high ralsed basement.
The walls are generally intact throughout the first and second stories except for the
west half of the south facade, where the stone has fallen away. Exterior end chimneys,
each with single smooth shoulders, project from the east and west sides. A square two-
story wing, approximately one-half the width of the main block, projects from the center
bav of the north elevation. All traces of the roof have disappeared, although it was

:sumably  gabled, as a portion of the west gable end is still in situ. he main
b;fLaﬂva was apparently located in the center bay of the south facade, but no trace of
it remains because this segment of the wall is mi

ssing. A segmental-arched rear entrance
is located in the center bay of the main block, opening inte the rear wing at both
stories. The basemznt contains three very small, wedge-shaped window openings at ground
1av31, which prodably functioned primarily for ventilation., Larger window openings, all
of which are segmental-arched, survive in the first-story east bay of the main facade
and Ju the end bays of both stories of the rear elevation. The side elevations are
windowless, In the northeast bay of the east side at ground level is a wide opening with
a Jatrge stone slab lintel. The opening is built into the chimney on this side, pre-
sumably for added structural strength. Stone steps descend through this opening to the
asement. A porch, which rests on a solid bad of rocks, occupies the middle section of
the main facade., The stone steps which ascend to the porch, and the stone slabs which
compose the porch floor appear to be quarried. Traces of stucco exist on the exterior
walls, and are particularly noticeable con the east wall., The eantire structure was
apparently stuccoed at one time, perhaps originally.
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The rear wing appears to be a later addition, for not only are the irr pnlariy
siraped fieldstones smaller and more consisrently rectanguiar than those of the main block,

but the wing slightly overlaps rhe second-story southeast window. The rear wing has an
opening in the first-story center hay which was apparently a doorway. This opening is
£l The only other window openings in the wing

1 .

anked by segmental- arched window openings o
ce second story of the east and west elevations.
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tirst-floor levels. There are segmental-arched fireplaces at the basement and upper
levels in both sides. Traces of plaster on the interior wall surfaces of the rear wing
robably indicate the original wall finish. Historical research has shown that John
lartin was a very prosperous man with a wealth of possessions. Archaeological arci-

facts probably exist beneath the rubble which has piled up within and around the ruin
which will yield further information concerning the interior and exterior appearance

of the house.
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Strong local tradition identifies the impressive stone ruin overlooking Sauratown
Mountain as the eighteenth century dwelling of John Martin. Martin acquired land in the
area soon afier the American Revolution, in which he served as lieutenant. A large
Tlandowner, he was a colonel in the militia and held a number of political positions in
Stokes County. The picturesque ruin, a reminder of what must have been among tihe
ziandest early houses in the area, is to be stabilized as part of a nature park.

The Rock House is believed to have been built by Colonel John Martin on 400 acres
and purchased from Micajah Clark in 1787. (Clark had acquired the land by state
Q4. Tweal tradifion has it that Colonel Martin laid the fourndation for his
770 and Lﬁmp7uzed it in 1785. This is unlikely, however, as he would have
naon only fouri old in 1770. Furthermore, an 1845 division of Colonel Mar tin's
Looner Landnoluings fafers to nis "Original home tract of Four hundred acres which was
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Martin served as a lieutenant in the Revoluticn and engaged in a skirmish at
Colson’s 0Old elds. He is believed to have been wounded while on a scouting expedition
near King's Mountain, which allegedly prevented him from participating in the important
battle which took place there.

After the Revolution Martin returned to present-day Stokes County where he served

for a time as a Loionel in the county militia and married Nancy Shipp. He then began
irving large guantities of land in Stokes and Surry counties and in Tennessee. Towaxrd

the end of his lifetime Martin owned nearlv 9,000 acres of land in Stokes County alone.

e personal property in Martin's possession at the
k House was the home of an educated man of considerable

2t least fortv-one slaves qnd in his will begueathed twenty-
tn VariOUS heirs. He owned considerabls personal property, including
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Martin served as a magistrate on the Stokes County Court of Pleas and Quarter
Sessions at various times from 1791 to 1818. In 1798 and 1799 he was elected as one of
Stokes's representatives in the North Carolina House of Commons. He is said to have
been a highly esteemed leader who spoke with a pronounced stutter. '"SAURA," an anony-
mous spokesman for Stokes County who claimed to have been an eyewitness, penned the
following anecdote concerning "Col. Jack" to a Raleigh newspaper in 1854:

When a requisition was made upon the militia of this State for the defence of
Norfolk, I was present when the North Regiment of the County was paraded to stand
the draft for its quota. Col. Jack Martin, who was the commander, formed them
into a hollow square and made them a speech. I wish I could give you the speech;
it was the best adapted to its purpose of any I ever heard. He then straightened
them out into a line, and gave the word for every one that was willing to go, to
march three paces in front. The drums rolled, the fifes squealed, the colors
waved a flourish, and, at the word March!! every man, with a simultaneous step,
moved forward three paces and halted perfectly in line!! The Col. rode down the
regiment and picked out the number called for, and discharged the rest. -—-During
the scene T have attempted to describe, a company of some dozen bare~footed boys
with cornstalk guns, whether for frolit or to show their pluck, marched out too
and joined in the same line with the volunteer regiment: and there they were
when Col. Jack came along picking out his men. 'What, the bo-bo-boys, too! (he
stuttered badly,) God bl-bl-bless you, bovs!'said he. He then marched them out,
riding along the line, to the tune of the white cockade, making a harangue, first
toe the boys and then to the selected men, (who were advanced somewhat in front,)
and then to the Regiment generally; and such shouts and hurras were never heard!
Glorious, glorious old Jack! He was a rough specimen of humanity, but he had

the ring of true metal.

John Martin died April 5, 1822, at about the age of sixty-six. His will provided
that his widow Nancy be provided a life interest in his homeplace and that at her death
the property should pass outright to his son William G. Martin.

Nancy Martin died January 24, 1841. The Rock House apparently then descended to
William G. Martin, who died intestate and without heirs the following year. In 1345
William G. Martin's lands were divided by court-appointed commissioners among his
various brothers and sisters, or their respective heirs. It is uncertain from the land
descriptions given in the division exactly who recelved the Rock House. No reference
was made to it by name and an exhaustive examination of existing deed transactions
between surviving members of the Martin and related families during the period after
1845 provided no clues as to the identity of the house's owner or ownars.

In June, 1887, T. L. Sarles and his wife Malinda, residents of Surry County,
conveyved to William K. Thoer (Thore) for $900 a 133-acre tract of land in Stokes County.
Uhere, when, aad how the Sarles obtained the proparty could not be ascertained. In




Form No. 10-300a
{fev. 10-74)

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR FOR NPS USE ONLY
NATIONAL PARK SERVICE
RECEIVED

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES

tDATE ENTERED

INVENTORY -- NOMINATION FORM

CONTINMUATION SHEET ITEM NUMBER 8 PAGE two

December, 1896, Malinda Sarles sold her interest in the 133-acre '"Rock house tract"
(the first reference to the tract by name) to Bettie Sarles (also of Surry County) for
§$517. Four months later the Sarles sold a seventy-four-acre portion of their land,
including the Rock House, to Jessie A. Ashburn and his wife (also of Surry), for $532.

Local tradition has it that the house was reduced to ruins by fire (or by a
windstecrm) in 1897. As with so many other local legends concerning the Rock House and
its early owners, however, this could not be substantiated by reliable evidence.

In May, 1899, the Ashburns sold the tract for $700 to Thomas J. and Sarah E. Thore.
The ruin has remained in the possession of the Thore family since that time. The
present owner is Mrs. Norma Thore of Pilot Mountain.
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